&

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT

Member of Wyoming Solid Waste and Recycling Association (WSWRA) P.O. Box 1400
Lander, WY 82520
telephone 307.332.7040
fax 307.332.5013
trashmatters.org
MEETING AGENDA
FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS — REGULAR MEETING

June 20, 2022 - 9:30 a.m.

1. PRELIMINARY ITEMS:

a. Pledge of Allegiance

b. Roll Call: Michael Adams, Steve Baumann, Mandy Rose, Rick Klaproth, Mark Moxley, Rob Dolcater, Rod
Haper, Jennifer Lamb, and Robert Townsend

¢. Declaration of Quorum
Approval of Agenda (Discussion and Formal Action)

e. Public Comment / Communication from the Floor

2. CONSENT ITEMS:

a. Approval of the Meeting Minutes

May 2022 — Regularly Scheduled

b. Approval of the Accounts Payable

May 2022

¢. Acceptance of Consultants and Agreement Reports

Trihydro Corporation
Burns and McDonnell
Wind River Inter-Tribal Solid Waste — no report submitted

d. Acceptance of Staff Reports

Superintendent Report

3. BUSINESS ITEMS:

a. Scale Facility Project — Burns and McDonnell Recommendation (Discussion and Formal Action)
b. Fiscal Year 2022-23 Task Order Requests (Discussion and Formal Action)

Trihydro Corporation
1. Task Order No. 10-032: Environmental Monitoring Services — not-to-exceed $93,157

Prior year cost was $134,524. The prior year included the Tier It field work for our Title V air quality
permit that caused the larger cost. This task order will inciude the groundwater and methane
monitoring at the Lander, Sand Draw, Dubois, and Shoshoni Landfills, lab coordination, data
validation, and reporting.

2. Task Order No. 10-033: Technical Assistance — not-to-exceed $24,850

Prior year cost was $24,850. This task order provides technical assistance to the District, including but
not limited to developing drawings, review of data, regulatory discussions, board meeting updates,
etc.

Burns and McDonnell
1. Agreement for Env. Services

This is the typical renewal of our agreement with them that identifies their rate structure. This does
include an average 4% increase.

Page 1 0f2



2. Authorization No. 33: Capacity Audits — not-to-exceed $30,400

Prior year cost was $29,200. This task order will include one topographic survey, airspace
consumption evaluation, airspace utilization factor (waste density), project remaining landfill life,
calculate the soil balance through the remainder of the site’s life, and develop the closure and post-
closure expenses for the Lander, Sand Draw, and Dubois landfills.

3. Authorization No. 34: Technical Assistance — not-to-exceed $25,000
Prior year cost was $20,000. The increase was at the request of the District to allow for additional
support as needed. This task order provides technical assistance to the District, including but not

limited to developing drawings, interim airspace utilization factor calcs, operational guidance, and
board meeting updates.

4. Authorization No. 35: CIP Model Review and Update — not-to-exceed $18,250

Prior year cost was $15,000. The prior year cost was lower due to the overlapping services within the
Strategic Planning project. This task order will include an annual review of past, current, and future
capital expenses and all revenues, update the model, evaluate the District’s disposal rates, and
present the model.

5. Authorization No. 36: Surveying and Staking — not-to-exceed $12,000
Prior year cost was $12,000. This task order will provide on-call surveying and staking work.

iv. SLB, Inc.
1. Engagement Letter: Financial Reviews and Audit Assistance — not-to-exceed $30,000

Prior year cost was $30,000. No changes in the rate structure.
3. NEW BUSINESS
4. CLOSING ITEMS:
a. Upcoming Meeting(s):

i. The next Regularly Scheduled Meeting(s): July 18, 2022, at 9:30 a.m.
b. Call for Adjournment

Page 2 of 2



FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT

Member of Wyoming Solid Waste and Recycling Association (WSWRA) P.O. Box 1400

Lander, WY 82520

telephone 307.332.7040

fax 307.332.5013

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT trashmatters.org
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting

May 16, 2022

1. PRELIMINARY ITEMS:

a. —c. The regular meeting of the Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District Board of Directors was held on
the above date and called to order by CHAIRMAN MOXLEY at 9:30am. CHAIRMAN MOXLEY then led the Pledge
of Allegiance and declared that there was a quorum of the Board with the following people in attendance:

Board Members: Robert Townsend, Normandy Rose, Jen Lamb, Mark Moxley, Rob Dolcater, Rod
Haper, Michael Adams and Rick Klaproth

Excused Member(s): Jen Lamb

Unexcused Member(s): no unexcused members

Commissioner Liaison: Mike Jones excused

Community Liaisons:  Kyle Larson (City of Riverton)

Attorney: Rick Sollars

Staff: Superintendent Andy Frey
Consultant(s): Susan Brodie (SLB, Inc.)
Guest(s): no guests

d. Approval of Agenda

RICK KLAPROTH made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. MIKE ADAMS seconded the motion.
MOTION CARRIED

e. Public Comment/Communication from the Floor

CHAIRMAN MOXLEY opened the floor to public comment. Hearing no public comment, the public comment was
closed.

2. CONSENT ITEMS:

a. Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes
i. April Regular Meeting - 2022
j. May Special Meeting - 2022

b. Approval of Accounts Payable
i, April 2022 Invoices

¢. Acceptance of Consultants Reports:
i. Trihydro Corporation — Progress Report
ii. Burns and McDonnell - Progress Report
iii. Wind River Indian Reservation Inter-Tribal Solid Waste Program — No Report Submitted

d. Acceptance of Staff Reports:
i. Superintendent Report

3. BUSINESS ITEMS:

a. Draft — Fiscal Year 2022-23 Annual Operating Budget (Discussion)

Superintendent Frey reviewed the draft budget highlights, budget message, and each line item.

Page 1of 2



Discussion(s): 1. Fuel price rate used within the budget. Ensure adequate allocations due to the variability
of the commodity. (2.) Inflationary and supply chain impacts on the current and draft budget. (3.) Utility
rate cost fluctuation. (4.) Closure/Post-Closure/Future Development reserve balance.

BOB TOWNSEND made a motion to approve the Draft Fiscal Year 2022-23 Annual Operating Budget as presented. RICK
KLAPROTH seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED

b. Scrap Metal Processing Contract Renewal (Discussion and Formal Action)

Superintendent Frey presented to the Board a renewal proposal from Pacific Steel to renew the existing
contract for one more year as allowed by the agreement. This is the last renewal opportunity prior to
opening the contract up to bids. Pacific Steel proposed $83 per ton. The prior year renewal included a rate
of $78 per ton, and the initial award two years prior was $46 per ton.

MIKE ADAMS made a motion to approve the renewal request from Pacific Steel for one year at a rate of $83 per ton.
VICE-CHAIRMAN DOLCATER seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED

4. NEW BUSINESS — no new business was presented
5. CALL FOR ADJOURNMENT

MIKE ADAMS made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 10:29am. VICE-CHAIRMAN DOLCATER seconded the motion.
MOTION CARRIED

6. UPCOMING MEETING(S):

a. The next Regularly Scheduled Meeting: June 20, 2022, at 9:30 a.m.

Respectfully submitted by,

Andrew Frey, P.E. Mark Moxley
Superintendent of Operations Board of Director’s Chairman
Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District

Page 2 of 2



2:36 PM

06/15/22
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2022

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
122105 - Petty Cash
122106 * Transfer Station Cash
122107 - Scale House Cash
123110 - CB&T Checking
123115 - Edward Jones Investments
123115a - Edward Jones-Federal Bonds

123115 - Edward Jones Investments - O...

Total 123115 - Edward Jones Investments

123120 - Bank of Jackson Hole
123130 - Wyo Star

123132 - Wyo Star |l

123134 - Wyoming Community Bank

Total Checking/Savings
Accounts Receivable
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity
32000 - Unrestricted Net Assets
380860 - Cash Reserve
380970 - Closure/Post-Closure Reserve
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

May 31, 22

300.00
400.00
1,600.00
73,356.40

8,363,083.31

1,707.99
8,364,791.30

192,794.59
1,182,507.81
10,970,067.08
851,404.96

21,637,222.14
226,941.78
19,161.44

21,883,325.36

21,883,325.36

119,321.65

119,321.65

2,617,228.59
750,000.00
18,155,822.00
240,953.12

21,764,003.71

21,883,325.36

Page 1



Trihq’dro

CORPORATION

memorandum

To: Andy Frey, P.E., Superintendent, Fremont County SWDD
From: Scott Lee, P.E.

cc: Fremont County SWDD Board

Date: June 13, 2022

Re: Project Updates for June 20, 2022 Board Meeting

The following information is provided to update the Board of the Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal
District (District) regarding the status of various projects that are being managed by Trihydro Corporation
(Trihydro), and associated activities associated with the Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality
(WDEQ), Solid and Hazardous Waste Division (SHWD), Water Quality Division (WQD), and Air
Quality Division (AQD). The information provided is generally limited to activity during the previous
month.

In addition to the below updates, Trihydro is also providing proposals and Task Orders for 2022-2023.

Sand Draw, Shoshoni, Lander, and Dubois Landfills — 2021-2022 Environmental Activities
and Monitoring (Task Order 10-030 / Trihydro Project 09Y-008-007)

Routine groundwater and methane monitoring was conducted at all landfills between April 4 and April
11, 2022. Data for the Sand Draw and Lander Landfills have been validated and statistical analysis is
complete. The report text for each facility is still underway, and each report will be sent to Mr. Andy
Frey for review, as soon as available.

During the week of March 14, the site-specific Tier 2 field study for non-methane organic compound
emissions was conducted at the Sand Draw Landfill by Vista GeoScience (Vista). Trihydro has prepared
the report for WDEQ/AQD, and it is in the final review stage. When complete, Trihydro will send to Mr.
Andy Frey for review, and then it will come to the Board Chairman for signature.

Technical Assistance (Task Order 10-029 / Trihydro Project 09Y-005-008)

Technical assistance activities during the previous month follow:
« A project status report was prepared for the monthly Board meeting,

= Based on Trihydro review of Shoshoni metals data from the new, up-gradient well (S-11) installed
under the WDEQ/SHWD Landfill Remediation Program (LRP), there was some concern that metals
concentrations might not be representative because the LRP results were unexpectedly elevated as
compared to the pre-existing up-gradient well data. During the April routine monitoring event,
Trihydro collected one metal sample at S-11 for comparison to data from the LRP project. We did

1252 Commerce Drive | Laramie, WY 82070 | phone 307/745.7474 | [(ax 307/745.7729 | www.trihydro.com



A

Andy Frey, FCSWDD
June 13, 2022
Page 2

not find substantial differences between the Trihydro and LRP results. This is good news because
new, site-specific groundwater quality standards may be issued based on the data from S-11, and most
of the new standards will probably be higher than those currently required. This should result in
fewer down-gradient exceedances for the landfill.

Shoshoni Landfill - Shoshoni Landfill Closure (Task Order 10-031/ Trihydro Project 09Y-
004-004)

Trihydro finalized the Closure Certification Report and submitted it to WDEQ/SHWD on May 19, 2022.
Please let us know if you have any questions or need additional information. You can call me on my

direct office line (307-335-3169), send me an email (slee@!trihydro.com), or stop by our office at 388
Main Street, Suite C, in Lander.

END OF MEMORANDUM



| > BURNS
Viem m NN\ MEDONNELL

Date: June 14, 2022

To: Andy Frey, PE, Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
From: Matt Evans, PE

Subject:  Progress Report —June 2022

The following provides an update on work completed by Burns & McDonnell since the last
Progress Report.

Operational Efficiency Study and Strategic Plan
Burns & McDonnell received comments on the Strategic Plan Report from the District
Superintendent and is in the process of finalizing the written report.

Capacity Audits
Capacity audit reports were completed and submitted to the District Superintendent for the 2021-
2022 FY.

It should be noted that based on current solid waste projections, it is recommended that the

District plan for a transition from primary disposal at Lander to Sand Draw midway through
2027.

Surveys for the 2022 capacity audits will be completed in July 2022.

Technical Engineering Assistance

Burns & McDonnell completed our monthly progress report, invoice and overall project
management related to the administration of the project as part of this task. Additionally, a basic
traffic study was completed using data from the Strategic Plan to model future traffic flow at
Sand Draw after the transition from primary disposal at Lander to Sand Draw.

Capital Improvement Plan Modeling

The CIP model was used as the foundation for the financial analysis completed as part of the
Operational Efficiency and Strategic Planning Study. It has been updated with the fiscal yearend
results for 2020-2021. A spring of 2022 update of the financial model is anticipated to be
completed in the third quarter of 2022.

Scale House Construction Project

The project was advertised for bid on April 15, 2022, however no bids were received on the bid
due date May 5, 2022. The project was readvertised for bid on May 25, 2022, with a new due
date of June 9,2022. After the Superintendent and Burns & McDonnell contacted multiple
contractors to help drum up interest in this project, still only one bid was received. The bidder
proposed to only complete one of the three scale house replacement projects and was deemed
incomplete. It appears that contractors in the region are too busy to bid the project.



Memorandum (continued) ‘\\B#EDNQSNNELL

June 14, 2022
Page 2

On-call Surveying

Fremont Engineering & Surveying, Inc. performed surveying at the Sand Draw landfill related to
the tire shredding pilot study project being performed at that landfill. The final survey of the pilot
study was completed on Thursday, May 19'".

Burns & McDonnell appreciates the opportunity to work with the District. If there are any
questions regarding this progress report or work that is being completed, please do not hesitate to
contact me at 612-240-2094 or maevans(@burnsmed.com at your earliest convenience.




Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
Superintendent Report
June 15, 2022

Office/Staff/Board/Inter-Government

Office:

1. The calculated tonnages and cost per ton are as follows (calculated using monthly expenses and
monthly tonnages):

Staff:

Board:

a.

Sm 0 oo o

2013 = 5140 per ton & 31,472 total tons
2014 = 5176 per ton & 27,562 total tons
2015 = $99 per ton & 31,890 total tons
2016 = $103 per ton & 29,659 total tons
2017 = 5102 per ton & 33,483 total tons
2018 = 5106 per ton & 36,352 total tons
2019 = 588 per ton & 41,900 total tons
2020 = 589 per ton & 36,200 total tons
2021 = $141 per ton & 35,700 total tons

Note: 2021 included approximately $1.1 million in expenses for the Shoshoni Landfill Closure project and
$457,900 in new equipment (i.e. three backhoes and a semi-tractor). Removing these two large expenditures,
the annual review would be presented as $97.91 per ton & 35,700 total tons.

2022 = $152.98 per ton & 7,000 total tons for the first quarter
Note: within this period our expenses have included the final three pay applications for the Shoshoni Landfill
Closure project. Additionally, our year-to-date tonnages are down almost 800 tons compared to last years’
first quarter.

June 2022: Following the approval of the Safety Incentive Program in April 2015, and the
implementation July 1, 2015, the Riverton Area staff (i.e. Riverton Transfer Station, the Sand Draw
Landfill, the Shoshoni Landfill, and the rural transfer stations) have not had a single lost-time
accident/incident in 6 years and 11 month, and the Lander Area staff (i.e. Lander Landfill and the
Dubois Landfill) had one lost-time accident early on but has now made it 6 years and 5 month!!

2022 — Below is the list of Board Committees and Members:

a.
b.

Recycling Committee: Jennifer Lamb, Mandy Rose, Bob Townsend, and Mark Moxley.
Health Benefit and Wage Committee: Rob Dolcater, Mike Adams, Mark Moxley, and Rick
Klaproth.

Planning Committee: Bob Townsend, Steve Baumann, Jen Lamb, and Rob Dolcater.
Budget Committee: Rick Klaproth, Jen Lamb, Rob Dolcater, and Mark Moxley.

WRIR Solid Waste Negotiations Committee: Rod Haper, Steve Baumann, Mandy Rose, and
Mark Moxley.

Page 10f3



Inter-Government:
1. State:
a. May 2022: The Honor Farm has reached out to the District to review a prior MOU that allowed

their program to graze some of the District land in exchange for them providing assistance back
to the District (i.e. litter picking assistance, fence maintenance, access to their welding shop,
etc.). We developed a new lease agreement with a neighbor to the north that allows stock water
for the Honor Farm cattle. The Honor Farm is working with their attorneys to develop an
updated MOU for Board review.
i. June 2022: no updates
2. County:

a. May 24, 2022: The District presented our DRAFT FY2022-23 Operating Budget. There was
discussion around fuel price impacts and how the District will manage. Additional discussion
topics included; the wage evaluation completed by the District, the superintendent’s wages, the
30-year post-closure period and District concerns about the unlikeliness of that term, and supply
chain issues.

3. Municipalities — No Updates
4. Tribal:

a. June 2022: The District continues to participate in the conference calls / Zoom meetings with

EPA and the Tribes.

Regulatory/Engineering/Legal/General Contractors
Regulatory:
1. May 2022: The District has submitted the final grant reimbursement request for the Shoshoni
Landfill Closure project for the WDEQ initial review.

Engineering:
1. Trihydro: (1.) Environmental Monitoring (2.) Technical Assistance (3.) Shoshoni Landfill Closure

Construction Oversight and Quality Assurance.
2. Burns and McDonnell: (1.) Capacity Audits (2.) Surveying (3.) Operational Efficiency Evaluation and
Strategic Planning (4.) CIP Model Updates, and (5.) Scale Facility Design.

Legal:
1. May 2022: The District received a draft Compliance Assistance Plan and Agreement (CAPA)

agreement for review from Representative Lloyd Larson associated with the Tribal Lands Cleanup
project. It was submitted to our attorney for review.

General Contractors:

Sites/Operations/Equipment:;

Sites — No Updates
Operations:
1. February 7, 2022: Due to a Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration rule change, effective
February 7, 2022, individuals pursuing a commercial drivers’ license will be required to receive
Entry-Level Driver Training from a trainer listed on the FMCA’s Training Provider Registry.

Historically, individuals interested in acquiring a commercial drivers’ license would either pick-up or
download the study materials necessary to study for, and take a test to obtain a driver’s permit.
Page 2 of 3



Following that, they would spend time operating a commercial vehicle with a licensed driver to
develop their skills necessary to become a licensed driver themselves. Then, they would schedule a
driving test with the Wyoming Drivers’ License Department to demonstrate their abilities and pass
or fail the driving test. A pass would lead to them obtaining a license. A failure would require
additional driving time with a licensed driver and a repeat of the exam.

Now, interested individuals will be required to identify a certified trainer, pay for a training course,
spend time driving with the certified trainer to demonstrate proficiency in knowledge and behind-
the-wheel capabilities, and then schedule a driving test.

After on-line research, a lengthy phone call to the US DOT Federal Motor Carrier Safety
Administration, and a subsequent email to them, we still are not aware of what available options
may exist in Wyoming. We will continue to research this.

a. June 2022: The District has still not received any returned correspondence.

Equipment:
1. June 2022: One of the two new front-end loaders ordered was delivered and has since been placed

into the fleet.

Miscellaneous/Upcoming Work & Events/Work in Progress:

Miscellaneous — No Updates

Upcoming Work & Events:
1. June 2022: There were no bids submitted for the first advertisement of the Scale Facility project.
In conversation with the potential bidders, they were unable to receive material bids from suppliers

in time to meet the bid deadlines. The District elected to re-advertise for bids, allowing additional
time for potential bidders to obtain material quotes. The bid results will be presented to the Board
at the June 2022 meeting.

After readvertising, there was only one partial bid submitted for the project. We will be discussing
alternative approaches at the June meeting.

Work in Progress:

1. June 2022: The District has scheduled the last survey for the tire shredding project and will be
evaluating the data following receipt.

Thank you,

%‘W

Andrew Frey, P.E.
Superintendent of Operations
Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District

Page 3 of 3



8
BURNS ,\MEDONNELL

June 15, 2022

Andy Frey

Superintendent of Operations

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
52 Beebee Road

Lander, Wyoming 82520

Re: Scale Houses Construction Project Recommendation
Dear Andy:

The Scale Houses Construction Project was first advertised for bid on April 15, 2022. By the bid
due date of May 5, 2022, no bids were received, as bidders indicated that they required
additional time to obtain subcontractor and material pricing. Based on this feedback, the project
was readvertised for bid on May 25, 2022, with a new due date of June 9, 2022. During this time,
the District only received one bid.

Upon review of the one received bid for the new scale houses project, Burns & McDonnell
recommends that the District not award the contract to the sole bidder due to incompleteness.
The bidder only proposed completing the Dubois scale house portion of the project, declining to
bid on the Lander and Sand Draw scale houses. It appears that construction contractors in the
region are fully booked and unavailable to bid the project.

As an alternative, Burns & McDonnell recommends that the District consider purchasing the
scale house buildings directly from a pre-fabricated building manufacturer and bid each landfill
site out separately for the remainder of the scale house project site work. This could make the
project more attractive to general contractors because of the reduced level of project
administration and subcontracting work. It should be noted that the construction management
responsibilities of the District will likely increase.

Sincerely,
Burns & McDonnell

Mo [ <

Matthew I. E¥ans, P.E.
Project Manager

8201 Norman Center Drive \ Suite 500 \ Bloomington, MN 55437
0 952-656-6003 \ F 952-229-2923 \ burnsmecd.com



Trih@ro

CORPORATIO

June 13, 2022

Mr. Andy Frey, Superintendent

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
P.O. Box 1400

Lander, WY 82520

RE: 2022-2023 Cost Proposal for Environmental Activities and Optional Technical Assistance:
Dubois, Lander, Sand Draw, and Shoshoni Landfills, Fremont County, Wyoming

Dear Mr. Frey:

Trihydro Corporation appreciates the opportunity to provide this cost proposal to the Fremont County
Solid Waste Disposal District (FCSWDD) for 2022-2023 environmental work and technical assistance for
the Dubois, Lander, Sand Draw, and Shoshoni Landfills. Project descriptions are provided below.

Environmental Activities

A detailed cost estimate and a description of environmental activities is provided as Attachment A. Work
will include routine environmental monitoring and reporting, including activities related to methane,
leachate, groundwater, and air. The scope of work for this project includes:

= Task 1: Dubois Landfill, Environmental Monitoring and Reporting

= Task 2: Lander Landfill, Environmental Monitoring and Reporting

= Task 3: Sand Draw Landfill, Environmental Monitoring and Reporting
= Task 4: Shoshoni Landfill, Environmental Monitoring and Reporting

= Task 5: Sand Draw Landfill, Air Reporting

Our 2022-2023 cost estimate for routine environmental work, Tasks 1 through 5, is $93,157. A Task
Order for the proposed work is enclosed for your consideration (Attachment B).

Optional Technical Assistance

As in previous years, we would also like to propose a budget for general technical support. In the event
that additional engineering, hydrogeologic, or regulatory support is needed during the coming year, we
have proposed a budget of $24,850. This includes five tasks for the Dubois, Lander, Sand Draw, and
Shoshoni Landfills as well as for General Assistance with budgets of $1,500, $6,285, $6,285, $250, and
$10,530, respectively. Work anticipated under specific landfill tasks includes preparation of permit

1252 Commerce Drive Laramie, WY 82070 phone 307/745.7474 fax 307/745.7729 www.trihydro.com



v

Mr. Andy Frey
June 13, 2022
Page 2

amendments to each facility’s environmental monitoring plan and a permit renewal for the Title V air
emissions permit at the Sand Draw Landfill.

We recommend keeping this budget item in place so we can respond quickly to any immediate needs. No
charges would be applied to this task without prior authorization from FCSWDD. A Task Order for the
total proposed cost for technical assistance ($24,850) is enclosed for your review (Attachment C).

As always, Trihydro will strive to complete the requested activities as efficiently and cost-effectively as
possible. If the Task Orders for Environmental Activities and Optional Technical Assistance are
acceptable (Attachments B and C), please forward completed documents to the Board Chairperson for
signature, make a copy for your records, and return the original to the attention of Autumn Bainer by
email (abainer@trihydro.com).

If you have any questions or require additional information regarding this proposal and/or contracts,
please do not hesitate to contact us at (307) 745-7474.

Sincerely,
Trihydro Corporation

St " A

Travis Evans, P.E.
Project Director

999-09Y-028 and 999-09Y-029

Attachments



ATTACHMENT A

DETAILED COST ESTIMATE FOR ENVIRONMENTAL ACTIVITIES



G401

Wwsp'y-1 1y~ LSOO €Z0ZISOOVONAIIAAMSO4TY 902208

BBESLS je103gng | yse) A)anoy SOOA UM )Uue|q du) Suo 3pIAQId -
oipAyuL ybnoiy) pajjig 3g |im sisos AojeiogeT -
vee'ss sJojaeiuodqng S|jam Jeau ajs-uo pableyasip ag Aeur sajem abind -
SUONAWNSSy
vZe'2s [ €LL'2s Auojesoge]
Qa3 pue ‘spodal [E2)1SNE)S 'UCHEPEA EJEP ‘Uodal gE| 'SWLO) P|31) JO SIUSWYDBRY -
ZZBS sasuadx3 EJEP |9A3] J9]EM DIJE]S |BDLIOISIY PUE ‘SOBUNS dUjowonuajod ‘a)Is ‘uoieo| ays Jo saunbi -
synsaJ sisA[eue |eolisiiejs Jueoyiubls pue ejep pjay JuaLno Jo sajqe | -
05$ z cz$ SNOsUB|[RoSI SUONEPUSLILIOIAS PUB ‘SUOISNIIUCD ‘SUOIIBAISSAD JO SAIRLEN -
0% welq Jad | 491 ‘AJojeloge| ‘pjay JO SABLEN -
CLLS 4 98% |anes ] ‘Buipnpur ‘podal ajAis Jays| asedald -
0048 z 0SeS juswdinbgy sislsuleied O 9 Y xipuaddy 'z J31dBYD HHAMSAM J0) SisAjeue AI0jBIoge| 3pIAOId -
sanianoe Buuonuow aueylaul Auauenb wiopad -
ZrL'TLS Jjoge Aiojeloqe| o} diys pue sjjam 3aiy} 0] dn wouy sajdwes 13jempunosb 19300 -
Ananonpuos pue ‘ainjessdwsa} ‘Hd Jojuow pue sjjam abing -
981% € 29% ¢ dAnedsiuwpy S||9M XIS Ul S|9A3)| Jojem 1jels abneo) -
0OvES 14 S8% ¥ [9AS7 [€dIuYds | :Buipnoul 'sanianoe Buuojuow Jajempunosb [enuueiwas Wiopad -
0E'CS 174 96% S |aAaT [eoluyda | saniAnoe Agges 1 yiesy oyoads-ays juswsidw) pue sjepdn -
895°L$ 9l 86$ ¥ 9A97 |euo|ssay0id AMHS/OIAM Pue 'A10)eiogeT Jou)si d4) Ui UOHEUIPIO0D pue juswabeuew josloid -
0Ze'vS (43 SELg 1 [9A97 |eUOISS3j0.d SOMANDY
00228 8l 0S1$ § [9A87] [BUCISS3)0Id
vCi$ 14 1:1% 0Ol |9A87 [BUOISSB0Id Busoday pue GuloNUO] [BIUBWUCIIAUT ‘|JJpUBT] SlognNg | YSBL
[reonans sjeuinsy ebiEyg 10 seBlelo Ry
jun Jo sanoH | eyey Aunoy Jo 9|npayss

ONINOAM ‘ALNNOD INOWTHS ‘STUJANVT AAMSIS

TVSOdO¥d ONIHOLINON TVLNIWNOUIANT €202 Ad 'V LNIWHIVLLY




G402

wspy-11¥” 1SODTEZ0ZISOOUONAUIAaMSD4TY 902202

9v2°0€S 1210IqNS Z NseL Ajuo sOOA Mue| du} 8UO BpIADId -
oupAyu] ybnouy) pajiig aq ||Im sisoo Alojesoqe] -
LEL'TIS slojoedjuodqng Sj|om SEaU B)is-uo pabieyosip aq Aew Jajem abing -
SUONOWNSSY
LEL'TLS % 6.5'LLS Aiojesoget
Q3 pue ‘spodai [eonsiie)s ‘uonepljea elep ‘podal el ‘SWIo} p|al) JO SJUBWYIENY -
1618 sasuadx3 EJEp [9A3] JO)eMm DI]e)s |eDU0)SIY PUB ‘S9BUNS Sujawonualod ‘ajis ‘uoedso| a)s Jo s8unbid -
s)|nsaJ sisAjeue |eonsnels Juesyubis pue ejep pjaly JuS4N Jo SIqe . -
0S$ 4 1A Snosue||sasIiy SUOIIEPUBLULLIOI3) PUB 'SUOISN|IUCD 'SUOIBAISSTO JO DANBLEN -
0$ waiq Jad Jar] ‘Aiojeloge] 'p|ay JO BAReLEN -
vreES ¥ 98% [CLI=2ER :Buipnioul 'podas a1A1s Jana| sedaid -
€001 ¥ 162% awdinbg SULOYIOO [BOB) ‘SS ] 'A0Y 'O Jo/pue ‘g 'Y xipuaddy ‘Z 1a1deyd HHMSAA J0) sishieue Aiojeioge| opaoi4 -
salAnoe Buuojluow aueylaw Ajauenb Lwiopad -
Z19'91S$ Jogeq Aiojeioqe| 0] diys '3uUe) UOJaBoD | PUE Sjjam | |0} dn wouy sajdwes 1ajempunocub 19a00 -
AlAlINPUOD pue 'ain)esadwa) ‘Hd Jojuow pue sjfam abind -
aves 14 9% ¢ safeNs|uiwpy S||aMm G Ul SI9A3| JBjem Jnels abneg -
ores 14 S8$ ¥ 13A97 [BOluyds | :Buipnjoul ‘saiAnoe BuLo)uow Jalempunolb [enuueias Wiopad -
809'v$ ey 96% G |3A97 |BOIUYDS | S3IIANDE A1BJES B Y)Bay dyloads-ays Juawsaldw) pue ajepdn -
096'L% (/4 86$ (9797 |EUOISS3)0.4d AMHS/OIaM pue ‘Aloleioge JoMISIQ AU} Yim UCIIEUIPI00D pue juswabeueuw 10a(oid -
0.9's$ [44 Sels 1 I3AS7 [BU0ISS301d SBWATY
004'2$ 8l 051$ 8 [9A87 [BUOISS3)0.d
980'L$ 9 18L$ 0l [8A87] Jeuoissajold odoy pue GulIONUOK [EJUBWIUCIIAUT ‘||jpueT JBpUBT Z )SBL
ej0gns ejewifis3y ebieyg o sebieys AjApay
nun Jo sunoy | agey Apnoy J0 anNpayog

DNINOAM ‘ALNNOD LNOWINS ‘STUJANVT GMSDA
IVS0d0Hd ONIMOLINOW TVLNIWNOYIANT €202 Ad 'V LINIFWHOVLLY



GJjog

WsIX ¥- 1Ly~ 1S0D” £20Z1SCOUONAUIAAMS DY 202202

1v6°5Z$ 12301gns ¢ yseL Aanoy AlUC S0A Juelg du) auo SpiAQid -
oapAyuL yBnouyl pajig ag |im $1s00 Aiojesoge -
282'6% siojoedjuodqnsg s||am 1eau syis-uo pableyosip aq Aew Jojem abingd -
SUCHAWNSsY
282’68 [t BEV'8S AKiojesogen
Q3 pue ‘spodal [EdnSEIS 'UOIEPRIBA EJEP ‘DOdSI gE| 'SULIO} PI3l} JO SJUSLLYDBRY -
L6£°1% sasuadxz EJEP |2AS] J3]em OIje]S |eJu0]sly pue 'aoeuns oljawonuslod 'alis ‘uoneao| ays Jo saunbi -
synsai sisA|eue |ednsiiers Jueoyiubls pue ejep pjaly JUs.LND Jo sI|qQe] -
058 z 5z$ SNOBUER0SIY SUONEPUBLILIDIS] PUE 'SUOISN|IUOD ‘SUONBAISSHO JO SAEBLEN -
0% waiq Jod uonepiea eJep || '| Ja11 'AJojeioge| ‘pjais JO SANBLEN -
PreES 14 98% |9ABIL :Buipnjaur 'podai ajf1s Jans| asedaid -
£00't$ 14 Ls2$ juswdinbg siojeweled J R g 10 D R ¥ xipuaddy 'z Ja1deyD HHMSAM 10} sishjeue AiojeIoqe] 8pIAoig -
sanAoe Buuopuow aueyiaw Aapenb uuopad -
B9Z'S1S Joqe] Aiojesoge) 0 diys pue sjjom g o] dn wouy sojdwes Jajempunolf 199)j00 -
AlAnonpuos pue 'aimeiadway) ‘Hd Joyuow pue sjjam abind -
9ves 14 29% 2 sAnelisiuwpy S|[9M GZ Ul S|3A3] Jajem oIE)S abneo) -
oveS 14 G8% ¥ 19A87 [B2IUYda | :Buipniour 'saianoe Buuoyuow Jajempunocib [enuue|was Wwiopsd -
v92's$ 7€ 96% G |9Aa7 [B21UYDS ] saAnoe Ajajes 3 yyeay ayvads-ans juawaidwi pue ajepdn -
096°L$ 0¢ 865 t [9A87 [EUDISS3j01d OMHS/OIAM pue ‘AiojeiogeT '1ous|d 8y} Ui UoBUIpIo0d pue Juswabeuew psafoid -
0.9'6$ [44 GELS 1 [9A7 |BUOISS301d SemATaY
004'2$ Bl 05L$ § [9A87 [euoISSdj0.d
980'L$ 9 1818 0l |oAe7 |BUOISSB)O1H Bunuoday pue BulIO)UOH |EJUBILONAUT ‘|jpUBT] MBIQ PUBS € YSEL
GEEE ejewnsy ebIeyd 1o sebIeyd Aynoy
Wun 1o sinoy | 81EY Aunoy J0 3Npaysg

ONIWOAM ‘ALNNOD LNOWI¥MH 'STIIAANYT GaMSD4
TVSOdO¥d ONINOLINOW TVLNIWNONIANS €202 Ad 'V ANFWHOVLLY



G0y

ws|x y-11¥ 15007 £2Z0ZISCOU0NAUIAaMSD4 Y 902202

9r9'si$ |ej01qns ¢ yse|
psidwes pue pabneb aq (im pue wWeiBoid Bulouow Ul PapN[DUI SI ||9M MaN -
vLL'es siojoenuodqns oipAyu] yBnoiyy pag aq |m sjsoo Alojeloge -
|am Jeau ays-uo pabieyosip eq Aew Jsjem abing -
v.1'€$ [ LEV'ES fiojeioqe] SUONAWNESY
PaLS sasuadxg @Q3 pue 'spodal |eonsiels 'uoliepliea elep 'poda) qe| 'SuLio} PIal) JO SUSLUYDENY -
elEp [9AS] JOJEM D1E]S [EDLIOISIY pUB '80euNns JiaLanualod ‘a)Is ‘uoieso] auis Jo saunbi4 -
0s$ c sZ% SNoaue|(adsiN synsaJ sisAleue |eonsnels yueowubis pue ejep pjal Juaund Jo sajge] -
0% warg Jad SUDNEPUBLIWOIAI PUE 'SUOISN[OUOD 'SUOIEAIDSGO JO SABLEN -
zLLS z 98% LT uonepiieA ejep |j | Jal | ‘Aioje1oge] 'plal JO SARELEN -
205$ C 1G2% juawdinb3y :Bulpnioul ‘wadau a|A)s Jaya| siedald -
sJalawered 9 ¥ v xipuaddy ‘z J91dBYD HHMSAA J0} siskjeue AIojeioge| aplaosd -
LIS Joqe] Aojeioge| o} diys pue sjlom G 0} dn wouy sajdwes tajempuno.b 109)100 -
AlAIlaNpUOD pue ‘aumesadwsa) ‘Hd Jojuow pue s||am abind -
BYZS 14 z9% Jom / S|9As| 19)em onels sbneg) -
oveS 14 sB% ¥ [3A97 [BOIUYD [ :Buipnjoul 'saiagoe Buuoyuow Jajempunolb [enuuelwss wiopad -
ve'LS el 968 G [8A37 [ediuyos | saniAoe A1a/es § Uileay ayoads-ayis Juswaldwi pue ayepdn -
89618 9l 96% ¥ (997 [EUOISS3)0Id AMHS/OIaM pue ‘AlojeiogeT 'JouIsIg aU) YU UOteulpIood pue juawabeurtu joafold -
0ze'vS 4% SELS £ |19A97 [BUOISS8401d SaMATOY
004'2$ 13 051% 8 |9A97 |BUOISSB0Id
v2is 14 iBLS Ol [9A87 jeuoISsaj0ld oday pue BULOLNUCH [EIJUSWIUOJIAUT '|[IJpUe ILOYSOYS ¢ YSe]
Ieyoigng sjewpsy ebrey) Jo sebieyn Ayl
Wun Jo suinoy | 3ey Apunoy 40 3npaydg

ONINOAM ‘ALNNOD INOWIYA ‘STIISANVT AAMSI4

IVSOdOYd ONIMOLINOW TYLNIWNOMIANS €202 Ad 'V ANIJWHOVLLY




GioG

wsix y- 11y LSO EZ0ZISOIUCANAIIAAMSI SV 902202

3)ewNsa 1563 51yl U1 PIpN|aul 10U S1INg 'paainbas ag Aew Budwesas ‘sawn Suipjoy uiyim pue Ajajes sajdwes (e1empunosb podsuel 0} J|GEUN 248 SIDLLED {EIDIBLILICT JUIAD SUL Ul 7L
18I0N

suonenBoy pue s3)nyY AseAn PIOS Buiohp = ¥uMSM

ANIEND [BlUaWUOIIAUT Jo Juswiedag BuieApm = DITM

Spljos papuadsns [eloL = SSL

UOISIAIQ SISBAA SNOPIEZRH PUE PIIog = AMHS

(1ewo) QMHS/DITM) aldessAlag eled olUoNd83 = a3

puewap usbifxo [eaiBojeld = 08

uoisIAI AWEND A1y = GOV

:SUONEIABIGQY

51°€6 TvLiOL ONVO
OEv's Buuoday 1y “|youe] meig pues G ysel
apa’sL Hunoday pue BULGIUOW |BIUSWUOIIAUT '[UPUBT IUOYSOYS  + YSBL
ivB'ce Buiuoday pue Buuaiuow |BJUBLIUCIIAUT ‘[JPUBT MeI( PUBS £ SEL
9. 0E Buneday pue Bupoliuopy [BJUSWUOIAUT IPUET JBPUBT Z YSBL
HEE'GL Buiuoday pue BULOIIUCHY [EIUSWUONAUT IJPUET SIDGNQ | ¥SeL
TVLOL
0EY'SS [E10IGNS G YSEL ANARDY
0$ $10)98J)U02qNS
0% 0% Aoresoge
0% sasuadx3y
19Bpng aauelsissy [BoIUYD3 | 3Y) Japun xse)
0% ] 0% snoaueyassiy meiq pues ay) 0) pajsod aq osje ABW ) se} Iyl 0} pajsod aq os|e {im [emaual puuad A af1L Jo) yom ‘smojle 1ebpng 4| -
0s 0 0$ waig Jad SUONAWNSsSY
0% (v} 0% [ELTIN
0S 0 0% juawdinby podal Z Jal] uo SjusWLLod QOV/DIAM 01 asuodsal apnjaul AW YO -
Juiiad A a3 10} sa01as Buiodal pUB S0UE]SISSE [EDIUYDS] BPIAOI -
0EL'SS J0qe]
0EV'SS o€ [A:1% 0} [3r87 [BUDISSBJ0.H Guiuoday i1y ‘JIIJpuB] Med Pueg G YSEL
li®101qng ajewpsy @b124D 10 sabiey) AiAnoy
nun Jo sunoy | ey Aunoy 30 3|Npayds

ONIWOAM ‘ALNNOD INOW3YS 'STTIJANVI GaMSD4
IVSOdO¥Ud ONIMOLINOW TVLNIWNONUIANI €202 Ad 'V LNIWHIVLLV



ATTACHMENT B

TASK ORDER FOR ENVIRONMENTAL ACTIVITIES



v

TRIHYDRO CORPORATION — FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT
NON-EXCLUSIVE SERVICE AGREEMENT

TASK ORDER
Task Order No.: 10-032 Date: June 13, 2022
Job No.: 09Y-008-008
Location of Project: Fremont County, Wyoming
Contract: Non-Exclusive Service Agreement between Trihydro Corporation and Fremont County Solid

Waste Disposal District, dated July 22, 2010.

Services to be Performed: Trihydro will perform a series of environmental activities for the Dubois, Lander,
Sand Draw, and Shoshoni Landfills to include 1) routine environmental monitoring and reporting for all landfills,
2) and Title V air reporting and support for the Sand Draw Landfill. Work will be performed in the District's
Fiscal Year 2022-2023.

Schedule - Commencement Date: July 01, 2022

Completion Date: June 30, 2023
Trihydro's Project Manager: Caroline Brewer
Client's Project Manager: Andy Frey
Attachments: A. Trihydro 2022 Standard Schedule of Charges

Other Information: Costs shall be on a time and materials basis not to exceed $93,157.00 without prior written
authorization from Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District.

Health and Safety Considerations: Trihydro will prepare and implement a site-specific health and safety plan for
Trihydro employees.

This Task Order is made and entered into pursuant to that certain Non-Exclusive Service Agreement between
Trihydro Corporation and Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District, dated July 22, 2010, the terms,
conditions, and provisions whereof are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof.

Electronic signatures will be accepted to execute this Task Order.

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE TRIHYDRO CORPORATION
DISPOSAL DISTRICT -
m [ “5;7"1(1
BY: BY:
Kurt V. Tuggle

TITLE: TITLE: President and CEQ




ATTACHMENT A

TRIHYDRO 2022 STANDARD SCHEDULE OF CHARGES



TRIHYDRO STANDARD SCHEDULE OF CHARGES
JANUARY 1, 2022 - DECEMBER 31, 2022 3.4

PERSONNEL UNIT RATE"’
Senior Principal 240.00/hour
Principal 217.00/hour
Project Principal 196,00/hour
Technical Specialist 4 255.00/hour
Technical Specialist 3 237.00/hour
Technical Specialist 2 222.00/hour
Technical Specialist 1 210.00/hour
Professional Level 12 209.00/hour
Professional Level 11 194.00/hour
Professional Level 10 181.00/hour
Professional Level 9 166.00/hour
Professional Level 8 150.00/hour
Professional Level 7 135,00/hour
Professional Level 6 120.00/hour
Professional Level 5 107.00/hour
Professional Level 4 98.00/hour
Professional Level 3 88.00/hour
Professional Level 2 e eeeeene e 78,00/ hOUT
Professional LEVEI 1 - e e ettt e rassess s ] 2 00/ hOUT
Technician Level 8 —— e o] 24,00 /hOUT
Technician Level 7 -—--eenev ettt e 1 15,00/ hoUr
Technician Level 6 105.00/hour
Technician Level 5 96.00/hour
Technician Level 4 85.00/hour
Technician Level 3 75.00/hour
Technician Level 2 67.00/hour
Technician Level 1 60.00/hour
Administrative 4 80.00/hour
Administrative 3 72.00/hour
Administrative 2 62.00/hour
Administrative 1 52.00/hour
EXPENSES

Subcontracts (Labor, EqUipMeNt and SErviCes) - -rmmsem e (05T + 10%
Shipping (i.e. Documents, Equipment, Supplies) Cost
TRAVEL EXPENSES

Meal Per Diem & $55/day/person
Airline Tickets Cost
Hotel/Motel Cost

Rental Vehicle . Cost

FIELD EXPENSES AND EQUIPMENT

Consumable Field Supplies Cost + 10%

Rental Equipment Cost +10%

Purchased Equipment Cost + 10%

Company Field Instruments, Equipment, Vehicles, etc. See Field Charge Sheet
Consumable Field Supplies and PPE See Field Charge Sheet
Company Vehicles (daily) ® $86/day min or 56.0 cents/mile
Company Vehicles {monthly) Cost + fuel cost

The above charges include fringe benefits, overhead and profit. No multiplier is used for billing

An annual escalation rate less than or equal to 5% will be applied to these rates for multi-year projects and contracts,

Payment of invoices shall be due within thirty days; delinqguent amounts due shall accrue a late charge of 1 1/2% per month from date of invoice

The rates in this Schedule of Charges are subject to change on December 31, 2022

Minimum charge of $86/day. Daily mileage exceeding 153 miles is charged at the current IRS rate per mile. Mileage rates are subject to change throughout the year

Any International travel meal per diem will be at cost

Expert testimony services, including but not limited to review and preparation of documents, preparation for and time spent in depositions, and preparation for and time spent
during arbitration or trial testimony, as well as related research and evaluation, shall be charged at2.0 times the individual's billing level

N A W e

%Trihlldro | Standard Schedule of Charges



ATTACHMENT C

TASK ORDER FOR OPTIONAL TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE



L 4

TRIHYDRO CORPORATION - FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT
NON-EXCLUSIVE SERVICE AGREEMENT

TASK ORDER
Task Order No.: 10-033 Date: June 13, 2022
Job No.: 09Y-005-009
Location of Project: Fremont County, Wyoming
Contract: Non-Exclusive Service Agreement between Trihydro Corporation and Fremont County Solid

Waste Disposal District, dated July 22, 2010.

Services to be Performed: Trihydro will provide monthly board reports and technical assistance activities (e.q..
surveying, engineering, environmental, and regulatory) on an as-requested basis for the Dubois, Lander, Sand
Draw, and Shoshoni Landfills. Work will be performed during the District's Fiscal Year 2022-2023.

Schedule - Commencement Date: July 01, 2022

Completion Date: June 30, 2023
Trihydro's Project Manager: Scott Lee
Client’s Project Manager: Andy Frey
Attachments: A. Trihydro 2022 Standard Schedule of Charges

Other Information: Costs shall be on a time and materials basis not to exceed $24,850.00, without prior written
authorization from Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District.

Health and Safety Considerations: Trihydro will prepare and implement a site-specific health and safety plan for
Trihydro employees.

This Task Order is made and entered into pursuant to that certain Non-Exclusive Service Agreement between
Trihydro Corporation and Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District, dated July 22, 2010, the terms,
conditions, and provisions whereof are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof.

Electronic signatures will be accepted to execute this Task Order.

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE TRIHYDRO CORPORATION
DISPOSAL DISTRICT / J—
/ uW
BY: BY:
Kurt V. Tuggle

TITLE: TITLE: President and CEQO




ATTACHMENT A

TRIHYDRO 2022 STANDARD SCHEDULE OF CHARGES



TRIHYDRO STANDARD SCHEDULE OF CHARGES
JANUARY 1, 2022 - DECEMBER 31, 2022 %34

PERSONNEL UNIT RATE*”
Senior Principal 240.00/hour
Principal 217.00/hour
Project Principal 196.00/hour
Technical Specialist 4 255.00/hour
Technical Specialist 3 237.00/hour
Technical Specialist 2 222.00/hour
Technical Specialist 1 210.00/hour
Professional Level 12 209.00/hour
Professional Level 11 194.00/hour
Professional Level 10 181.00/hour
Professional Level 9 166.00/hour
Professional Level 8 150.00/hour
Professional Level 7 135.00/hour
Professional Level 6 120.00/hour
Professional Level 5 107.00/hour
Professional Level 4 98.00/hour
Professional Level 3 88.00/hour
Professional Level 2 -7 8,00/ hOUT
Professional Leve|] 1 -« e seeomemmmmemmmmmm e s crmmnaneennnnnnn72 00/ hoUr
TEChNICIAN LAV 8 itk s s i 8 3t et ettt i i S i e e 5 e s ...............---124_00/h0ur
Technician Level 7 ——cmmmmmmmm e T T .-....115_00/h0ur
Technician Level 6 105.00/hour
Technician Level 5 96.00/hour
Technician Level 4 85.00/hour
Technician Level 3 75.00/hour
Technician Level 2 67.00/hour
Technician Level 1 60.00/hour
Administrative 4 80.00/hour
Administrative 3 72.00/hour
Administrative 2 62.00/hour
Administrative 1 52.00/hour
EXPENSES

Subcontracts {Labor, Equipment and Services) Cost + 10%
Shipping (i.e. Documents, Equipment, Supplies) Cost
TRAVEL EXPENSES

Meal Per Diem © $55/day/person
Airline Tickets Cost
Hotel/Motel Cost

Rental Vehiclesssssrmssssasseesees st e s Cost

FIELD EXPENSES AND EQUIPMENT

Consumable Field Supplies . Cost + 10%

ReNtal EQUIPM N - oo Cost + 10%

Purchased Equipment- seeseeeesaC0OSTE + 10%

Company Field Instruments, Equipment, Vehicles, ete. - See Field Charge Sheet
Consumable Field Supplies and PPE---- et See Field Charge Sheet
Company Vehicles (daily) 5= $86/day min or 56.0 cents/mile
Company Vehicles (MONtAly} «-------mommme e e Cost + fuel cost

The above charges include fringe benefits, overhead and profit. No multiplier is used for billing,

An annual escalation rate less than or equal to 5% will be applied to these rates far multi-year projects and contracts

Payment of invoices shall be due within thirty days; delinquent amounts due shall accrue a late charge of 1 1/2% per month from date of invoice

The rates in this Schedule of Charges are subject to change on December 31, 2022

Minimum charge of $86/day Daily mileage exceeding 153 miles is charged at the current IRS rate per mile. Mileage rates are subject to change throughout the year

Any International travel meal per diem will be at cost

Expert testimony services, including but not limited to review and preparation ol documents, preparation for and time spent in depositions, and preparation for and time spent
during arbitration or trial testimony, as well as related research and evaluation, shall be charged at 2.0 times the individual’s billing level

NV R WM

%Tfihlldro | Standard Schedule of Charges



AMENDMENT NO 8
To
AGREEMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES AND REMEDIATION

Between
BURNS & McDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.
Kansas City, Missouri
And
FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING
Lander, Wyoming

This Contract Amendment is made by and between Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company,
Inc. (hereinafter CONTRACTOR), and Fremont County, Wyoming (hereinafter CLIENT) this
20" day of June 2022.

Whereas, it is the mutual desire of the parties hereto to amend the Master Services Agreement
for Professional Consulting Services entered into on May 20, 2014 (hereinafter called the
Existing Agreement). The Existing Agreement shall be amended as follows:

o The attached CONTRACTOR’s Hourly Professional Services Billing Rates shall replace
Attachment “B-1" of the Existing Agreement and all other Hourly Professional Services
Billing Rates included as part of previous amendments to the Existing Agreement.

e The “Contract Time” provision shall be modified as follows:
Contract Time. The contract to be performed under this Existing Agreement shall
be substantially completed by the following date: June 30, 2023.

This Amendment will be deemed a part of, and be subject to, all terms and conditions of the
Existing Agreement. Except as modified above, the Existing Agreement will remain in full force
and effect.

AUTHORIZATION BY:
FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT

By

Date

ACCEPTED BY:
BURNS & MCDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

o

By: Spencer Cronin, Regional Manager, Environmental Services

Date_ 6/15/2022

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District



Schedule of Hourly Professional Service Billing Rates

Position Classification Hourly
Classification Level Billing Rate
General Office* 5 $77.00

Technician* 6 $87.00

Assistant* 7 $99.00

8 $139.00

9 $154.00

Staff* 10 $172.00
11 $186.00

Senior 12 $205.00
13 $225.00

Associate 14 $238.00
15 $254.00

Notes

1. Position classifications listed above refer to the firm's internal classification system for employee compensation. For
example, "Associate", "Senior”, etc., refer to such positions as "Associate Engineer", "Senior Architect”, etc.

2. For outside expenses incurred by Burns & McDonnell, such as authorized travel and subsistence, and for services
rendered by others such as subcontractors, the client shall pay the cost to Burns & McDonnell plus 7%.

3. Monthly invoices will be submitted for payment covering services and expenses during the preceding month. Invoices
are due upon receipt. A late payment charge of 1.5% per month will be added to all amounts not paid within 30 days
of the invoice date.

4. Contractor may engage temporary staffing agencies or obtain assistance from its affiliates and subsidiaries
including, without limitation, Burns & McDonnell Canada Ltd., Burns & McDonnel! International Inc., and Burns &
McDonnell India Pvt. Ltd. ("Labor Sources”) to fulfill Contractor’s performance obligations under this Agreement.
The parties agree that contracts, purchase orders, or similar agreements between Contractor and any Labor
Sources are not subcontracts as that term is used in this Agreement, and personnel from such Labor Sources shail
be billed according to the applicable rate sheet for the Scope of Work as if such personnel is a direct hire employee.
Personnel from Labor Sources shall be considered agents of Contractor and able to act on behalf of Contractor
within the scope of the authority granted such personnel according to job function and billing classification.

5. The rates shown above are effective for services through June 30, 2023 and are subject to revision thereafter.
Annual rate increases will be limited to a maximum of 4%.

2022-2023 Fremont Rate Sheet



FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT
Lander, Wyoming
AUTHORIZATION NO. 33
FOR SERVICES TO
BURNS & McDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.
Kansas City, Missouri

In accordance with the AGREEMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES AND REMEDIATION
dated May 20, 2014 between Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District (hereinafter called CLIENT)
and Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. (hereinafter called CONTRACTOR), CLIENT
hereby authorizes CONTRACTOR to proceed with the following services:

1. Basic Services

Basic Services are services and work which will be performed by CONTRACTOR for the Project. The
following are Basic Services for FY 2022-2023. They are the same Basic Services that were provided in
previous capacity audit authorizations.

1.1 Professional Services

1.1.1 Capacity Audits

Topographical Survey
The CONTRACTOR shall complete a topographical survey during the first two weeks of July at the
District landfill facilities, which includes:
e Dubois Landfill
e Lander Landfill
e Sand Draw Landfill
The topographical survey shall be at a level of detail to produce 1-foot contours for the Permitted Waste

Areas. All permanent infrastructure shall be located as part of the survey, including, culverts, power
poles, buildings, monitoring wells, road edges, trees, fence lines, and gates.

The landfill facilities have the following acreages:

Landfill Property Acreage Permitted Waste Area
Dubois 40 Acres 7 Acres
Lander 216 Acres 39 Acres
Sand Draw 217 Acres 80 Acres

Volume Analysis And Airspace Utilization Calculation

The CONTRACTOR shall complete volume analysis for the three landfills, as well as several stockpiles
located on the properties. Airspace utilization calculations shall also be completed for the landfills.

1.1.2 Landfill Analysis

Topographical surveys are completed at Dubois, Lander, and Sand Draw annually in July of each year.

CONTRACTOR shall compute volume of waste placed at Dubois, Lander, and Sand Draw Landfills
using the previous year surveys and the new topographical survey completed in Part 1 above. Volume

Authorization No. 33 Page | of 3



calculation shall be completed using computer aided design program. CONTRACTOR shall calculate the
airspace utilization for the landfill by dividing the waste tonnage placed in the landfill during the period
between surveys by the calculated volume.

Remaining Landyfill Life Projections

The CONTRACTOR shall calculate the remaining landfill life by using final cover contours provided by
the CLIENT. The final cover contours shall be used to calculate the remaining site volume. The
remaining landfill life shall be calculated by using the remaining landfill volume, calculated air space
utilization, and growth rate projection provided by the CLIENT.

Soil Balance Analysis

The CONTRACTOR shall complete a soil balance analysis that determines long-term soil needs for the
site. The soil balance will be based on future soil needs for daily cover, intermediate cover, and final
cover. The soil balance shall consider soil volumes within stockpiles and permitted borrow areas.

Operational discussions between the CONTRACTOR and the CLIENT shall be utilized to determine
appropriate soil ratio used for daily cover at individual sites, as well as the future landfill cap design. This
information shall be used with the remaining volume calculation that was determined as part of the
volume analysis to determine the needed remaining soil needs for the landfill.

Closure And Post-Closure Cost Estimate Updates

The CONTRACTOR shall complete a closure and post-closure cost estimate for the three landfills. The
cost estimate shall provide a cost for closure and post-closure cost estimate for the three landfills based on
the current stage of each respective site, and on each respective site reaching maximum capacity.

1.1.3 Deliverables
CONTRACTOR shall submit the following deliverables to the Client:

e Technical Memorandum summarizing calculations shall be completed. Memorandum should
include tables summarizing Annual Volume Consumed, Remaining Volume, Airspace
Utilization, Remaining Landfill Life, and any assumptions made in the process.

CONTRACTOR will proceed with providing the services set forth herein as of July 1, 2022 and complete
the services by June 30, 2023.

1.2 Construction Work: NONE

2. Additional Services

Additional Services are services or work which may be performed by CONTRACTOR for the Project, but
which will be done at additional cost and are not included in the Project Budget. The following are
Additional Services: NONE

3. Excluded Services

Excluded Services are services or work which will not be performed by CONTRACTOR unless
CONTRACTOR specifically agrees to perform such services or work. Excluded Services include, but are
not limited to: NONE

Authorization No. 33 Page 2 of 3



4. Compensation

CLIENT shall compensate CONTRACTOR for providing the services set forth herein in accordance with
the terms or the existing Agreement. The cost initially authorized for the services is thirty thousand four
hundred dollars ($30,400) and will be invoiced to the CLIENT on a time and materials basis. The
CONTRACTOR shall not exceed this amount without prior written approval of CLIENT.

COVID-19 Natification. The uncertainty and potential disruptions to the labor force and supply chain
caused by the global outbreak and spread of COVID-19 (“coronavirus”) may have an impact on this
Project, the exact cost and duration of which we can neither predict nor control. Government orders and
restrictions may also delay or prevent performance as anticipated. Therefore, this Proposal is conditioned
upon an appropriate force majeure clause being included in the contract, which will grant the contractor a
period of relief in performance and appropriate cost relief where circumstances arise that are beyond our
control due to COVID-19 related events. In general, force majeure applies when an “act of God,” labor
shortages, governmental order or regulation, or other extraordinary event prevents performance. The
outbreak and spread of COVID-19 is just such an event, the impact of which nobody can predict at this
time. To the extent applicable, the doctrines of “commercial impracticability” or “frustration of purpose”
under the Uniform Commercial Code (“UCC”) may also excuse performance if delivery pursuant to our
contract’s terms has been made “impracticable” by the occurrence of a contingency, the non-occurrence
of which both parties assumed when the contract was made. At this time, it is impossible to foresee or to
predict the full impact of COVID-19 around the world and, therefore, have not included a contingency
specifically for COVID-19,

AUTHORIZATION BY:

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT

By

Date

ACCEPTED BY:

BURNS & MCDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

By

Date_ 6/15/2022

Authorization No. 33 Pagc 3 uf 3



FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT
Lander, Wyoming
AUTHORIZATION NO. 34
FOR SERVICES TO
BURNS & McDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.
Kansas City, Missouri

In accordance with the AGREEMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES AND REMEDIATION
dated May 20, 2014 between Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District (hereinafter called CLIENT)
and Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. (hereinafter called CONTRACTOR), CLIENT
hereby authorizes CONTRACTOR to proceed with the following services:

1. Basic Services

Basic Services are services and work which will be performed by CONTRACTOR for the Project. The
following are Basic Services for FY 2022-2023. They are the same Basic Services that were provided in
previous technical engineering assistance authorizations.

1.1 Professional Services:

1.1.1  Technical Engineering Assistance: District Site/Operational Guidance & Board Reports

The CONTRACTOR shall provide operational guidance and on-call engineering services for the
CLIENT’s facilities as requested by the solid waste superintendent. The CONTRACTOR is expected to
be familiar with the CLIENT’s varying operations and permitting requirements. The CONTRACTOR
will also provide a written Board Report for each regularly scheduled Board meeting (which is
approximately one per month), updating the Board on all current activities. For purposes of establishing a
budget for this task, Burns & McDonnell has assumed 110 hours of professional time will be needed to
complete the board reports and requested guidance and on-call engineering.

CONTRACTOR will proceed with providing the services set forth herein as of July 1, 2022. The services
shall be completed by June 30, 2023.

1.2 Construction Work: NONE

2. Additional Services

Additional Services are services or work which may be performed by CONTRACTOR for the Project, but
which will be done at additional cost and are not included in the Project Budget. The following are
Additional Services: NONE

3. Excluded Services

Excluded Services are services or work which will not be performed by CONTRACTOR unless
CONTRACTOR specifically agrees to perform such services or work. Excluded Services include, but are
not limited to: NONE

Authorization No. 34 Page 1 of 2



4. Compensation

CLIENT shall compensate CONTRACTOR for providing the services set forth herein in accordance with
the terms or the existing Agreement. The cost initially authorized for the services is twenty-five thousand
dollars ($25,000) and will be invoiced to the CLIENT on a time and materials basis. The
CONTRACTOR shall not exceed this amount without prior written approval of CLIENT.

COVID-19 Notification. The uncertainty and potential disruptions to the labor force and supply chain
caused by the global outbreak and spread of COVID-19 (“coronavirus™) may have an impact on this
Project, the exact cost and duration of which we can neither predict nor control. Government orders and
restrictions may also delay or prevent performance as anticipated. Therefore, this Proposal is conditioned
upon an appropriate force majeure clause being included in the contract, which will grant the contractor a
period of relief in performance and appropriate cost relief where circumstances arise that are beyond our
control due to COVID-19 related events. In general, force majeure applies when an “act of God,” labor
shortages, governmental order or regulation, or other extraordinary event prevents performance. The
outbreak and spread of COVID-19 is just such an event, the impact of which nobody can predict at this
time. To the extent applicable, the doctrines of “commercial impracticability” or “frustration of purpose”
under the Uniform Commercial Code (“UCC”) may also excuse performance if delivery pursuant to our
contract’s terms has been made “impracticable” by the occurrence of a contingency, the non-occurrence
of which both parties assumed when the contract was made. At this time, it is impossible to foresee or to
predict the full impact of COVID-19 around the world and, therefore, have not included a contingency
specifically for COVID-19.

AUTHORIZATION BY:

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT

By

Date

ACCEPTED BY:

BURNS & MCDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

e 2

Spencer Cronin, Regional Manager, Environmental Services

Date __ 6/15/2022

Authorization No. 34 Pagc 2 of 2



FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT
Lander, Wyoming
AUTHORIZATION NO 35
FOR SERVICES TO
BURNS & McDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.
Kansas City, Missouri

In accordance with the AGREEMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES AND REMEDIATION
dated May 20, 2014 between Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District (hereinafter called CLIENT)
and Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. (hereinafter called CONTRACTOR), CLIENT
hereby authorizes CONTRACTOR to proceed with the following services:

1. Basic Services

Basic Services are services and work which will be performed by CONTRACTOR for the Project. The
following are Basic Services for FY 2022-2023. They are the same Basic Services that were provided in
previous CIP model review and update authorizations.

1.1 Professional Services

1.1.1  CIP Model Review and Update

The CONTRACTOR shall meet with the CLIENT as needed to understand the previous, current, and
future year capital expenses and revenues. The CONTRACTOR shall also meet with the CLIENT to
review and update the capital improvement project model and evaluate the rate schedule. Rate adjustment
alternatives will also be developed by the CONTRACTOR and recommended to the CLIENT if deemed
necessary.

The results of the CIP and Rates Review shall be summarized and presented to the CLIENT at a regularly
scheduled board meeting by the CONTRACTOR. The presentations shall include a summary of the
financial situation of the CLIENT, as well as answer any further District questions. For purposes of
establishing a budget for this task, CONTRACTOR has assumed 85 hours of professional time, and one
trip to Lander, WY, will be needed to complete the CIP model review and update work.

CONTRACTOR will proceed with providing the services set forth herein as of July 1, 2022 and complete
the services by June 30, 2023.

1.2 Construction Work: NONE

2. Additional Services

Additional Services are services or work which may be performed by CONTRACTOR for the Project, but
which will be done at additional cost and are not included in the Project Budget. The following are
Additional Services: NONE

3. Excluded Services

Excluded Services are services or work which will not be performed by CONTRACTOR unless
CONTRACTOR specifically agrees to perform such services or work. Excluded Services include, but are
not limited to: NONE

Authorization No, 35 Page 1 of 2



4. Compensation

CLIENT shall compensate CONTRACTOR for providing the services set forth herein in accordance with
the terms or the existing Agreement. The cost initially authorized for the services is eighteen thousand
two hundred fifty dollars ($18,250) and will be invoiced to the CLIENT on a time and materials basis.
The CONTRACTOR shall not exceed this amount without prior written approval of CLIENT.

COVID-19 Notification. The uncertainty and potential disruptions to the labor force and supply chain
caused by the global outbreak and spread of COVID-19 (“coronavirus™) may have an impact on this
Project, the exact cost and duration of which we can neither predict nor control. Government orders and
restrictions may also delay or prevent performance as anticipated. Therefore, this Proposal is conditioned
upon an appropriate force majeure clause being included in the contract, which will grant the contractor a
period of relief in performance and appropriate cost relief where circumstances arise that are beyond our
control due to COVID-19 related events. In general, force majeure applies when an “act of God,” labor
shortages, governmental order or regulation, or other extraordinary event prevents performance. The
outbreak and spread of COVID-19 is just such an event, the impact of which nobody can predict at this
time. To the extent applicable, the doctrines of “commercial impracticability” or “frustration of purpose”
under the Uniform Commercial Code (“UCC”) may also excuse performance if delivery pursuant to our
contract’s terms has been made “impracticable” by the occurrence of a contingency, the non-occurrence
of which both parties assumed when the contract was made. At this time, it is impossible to foresee or to
predict the full impact of COVID-19 around the world and, therefore, have not included a contingency
specifically for COVID-19,

AUTHORIZATION BY:

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT

By

Date

ACCEPTED BY:

BURNS & MCDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

Spencer Cronin, Regional Manager, Environmental Services

By

Date  6/15/2022

Authorization No. 35 Page 2 of 2



FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT
Lander, Wyoming
AUTHORIZATION NO. 36
FOR SERVICES TO
BURNS & McDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.
Kansas City, Missouri

In accordance with the AGREEMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES AND REMEDIATION
dated May 20, 2014 between Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District (hereinafter called CLIENT)
and Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. (hereinafter called CONTRACTOR), CLIENT
hereby authorizes CONTRACTOR to proceed with the following services:

1. Basic Services

CONTRACTOR shall provide surveying services in accordance with the following assumptions and lump
sum prices included on the attached Surveying and Staking Fee Structure Request sheet.

Assumptions:

1. CLIENT’s Subcontractor, Fremont Engineering & Surveying, Inc., will complete the surveying
services.

2. CONTRACTOR shall complete field work within five business days of the CLIENT’s notice to
proceed unless otherwise mutually agreed upon. Additionally, CONTRACTOR shall complete
office/mapping work within 10 business days of completing the surveying field work unless
otherwise agreed upon.

3. For staking requests, the CLIENT will provide an electronic pdf showing the desired locations of
the staking. The pdf will be sent to the surveyor at the time of the notice to proceed.

4. CONTRACTOR shall provide AutoCAD files with the surface and point information included to
the CLIENT as part of their surveying deliverable. CONTRACTOR shall also provide pdf files to
the Superintendent presenting the surveying drawing and results. PDF drawings shall be easily
printable in an 11x17 paper format.

CONTRACTOR will proceed with providing the services set forth herein as of July 1, 2022 and complete
the services by June 30, 2023.

2. Additional Services

Additional Services are services or work which may be performed by CONTRACTOR for the Project, but
which will be done at additional cost and are not included in the Project Budget. The following are
Additional Services: NONE

3. Excluded Services

Excluded Services are services or work which will not be performed by CONTRACTOR unless
CONTRACTOR specifically agrees to perform such services or work. Excluded Services include, but are
not limited to: NONE

Authorization No. 36 Page | of 2



4. Compensation

CLIENT shall compensate CONTRACTOR for providing the services set forth herein in accordance with
the terms or the existing Agreement. The cost initially authorized for the services is twelve thousand
dollars ($12,000) and will be invoiced to the CLIENT on a time and materials basis. The CONTRACTOR
shall not exceed this amount without prior written approval of CLIENT.

COVID-19 Notification. The uncertainty and potential disruptions to the labor force and supply chain
caused by the global outbreak and spread of COVID-19 (“coronavirus”) may have an impact on this
Project, the exact cost and duration of which we can neither predict nor control. Government orders and
restrictions may also delay or prevent performance as anticipated. Therefore, this Proposal is conditioned
upon an appropriate force majeure clause being included in the contract, which will grant the contractor a
period of relief in performance and appropriate cost relief where circumstances arise that are beyond our
control due to COVID-19 related events. In general, force majeure applies when an “act of God,” labor
shortages, governmental order or regulation, ot other extraordinary event prevents performance. The
outbreak and spread of COVID-19 is just such an event, the impact of which nobody can predict at this
time. To the extent applicable, the doctrines of “commercial impracticability” or “frustration of purpose’
under the Uniform Commercial Code (“UCC”) may also excuse performance if delivery pursuant to our
contract’s terms has been made “impracticable” by the occurrence of a contingency, the non-occurrence
of which both parties assumed when the contract was made. At this time, it is impossible to foresee or to
predict the full impact of COVID-19 around the world and, therefore, have not included a contingency
specifically for COVID-19.

3

AUTHORIZATION BY:

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT

By

Date

ACCEPTED BY:

BURNS & MCDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

Spencer Cronin, Regional Manager, Environmental Services

By

Date  6/15/2022

Authorizalion No. 36 Page 2 of 2



Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
Surveying and Staking Fee Structure Request
June 16, 2022

Work Schedule and Timing: For all services described below, surveyor shall complete field work within
five business days of the notice to proceed unless otherwise mutually agreed upon. Additionally,
surveyor shall complete office/mapping work within 10 business days of completing the surveying field
work unless agreed upon.

Bidding Notes:

2.

Bid prices shall include all labor, equipment, mileage, overhead, markup, and other expenses
necessary to complete the field and office work necessary to complete these tasks

Assume that each bid item will be completed individually (i.e. do not assume that multiple bid
items will be completed on the same trip to the landfill).

For staking requests, the District Superintendent will provide an electronic pdf showing the
desired locations of the staking. The pdf will be sent to the surveyor at the time of the notice to
proceed.

Surveyor shall provide AutoCAD files with the surface and point information included to the
Superintendent as part of their surveying deliverable to the District. Surveyor shall also provide
pdf files to the Superintendent presenting the surveying drawing and results. PDF drawings shall
be easily printable in an 11x17 paper format.

Lander Landfill
a. Topo of the entire landfill waste boundary and airspace volumetric calculation of
airspace consumption when compared against a surface developed by prior topographic
survey. $ 1,600
b. Topo and airspace volumetric calculation of airspace consumption when compared
against a surface developed by prior topographic survey:

=>» Area of five acres or less, $ 808

=> Area of greater than five acres but less than ten acres, $ 1041
=> Area of greater than ten acres but less than 20 acres, $1,155
= Area of greater than 20 acres but less than 30 acres, and $1,155
=>» Area of greater than 30 acres but less than 40 acres. $1,272

c. Surveying and guidance staking of top of waste, base of an excavation, alignment, top of
final grade, or alternative requests (including a printable map with points shown and
cut/fill measurements shown with the points):

=» 50 points or less, $ 751

= 51-75 points, $ 1,155
=>» 76-125 points, and $1,730
=» 126-200 points. $ 2,540

Sand Draw Landfill
a. Topo of the entire landfill waste boundary and airspace volumetric calculation of
airspace consumption when compared against a surface developed by prior topographic
survey. $1,800
b. Topo and airspace volumetric calculation of airspace consumption when compared
against a surface developed by prior topographic survey:

Page1of3



C.

=» Area of five acres or less, $924

=» Area of greater than five acres but less than ten acres, $1,155
<> Area of greater than ten acres but less than 20 acres, $1,250
=>» Area of greater than 20 acres but less than 30 acres, and $ 1,300
= Area of greater than 30 acres but less than 40 acres. $ 1,400

Surveying and guidance staking of top of waste, base of an excavation, alignment, top of
final grade, or alternative requests (including a printable map with points shown and
cut/fill measurements shown with the points):

= 50 points or less, $ 870

= 51.75 points, $1,270
= 76-125 points, and $1,850
=>» 126-200 points. $ 2,660

3. Dubois Landfill

a.

Topo of the entire landfill waste boundary and airspace volumetric calculation of
airspace consumption when compared against a surface developed by prior topographic
survey. $2,000

b. Topo and airspace volumetric calculation of airspace consumption when compared

C.

against a surface developed by prior topographic survey:

=>» Area of five acres or less, $1,100
=>» Area of greater than five acres but less than ten acres, $1,330
=>» Area of greater than ten acres but less than 20 acres, $ 1,445
=> Area of greater than 20 acres but less than 30 acres, and $ 1,445
=> Area of greater than 30 acres but less than 40 acres. $1,560

Surveying and guidance staking of top of waste, base of an excavation, alignment, top of
final grade, or alternative requests (including a printable map with points shown and
cut/fill measurements shown with the points):

=» 50 points or less, $1,040
= 51-75 points, $ 1,445
=» 76-125 points, and $ 2,020
=>» 126-200 points. $2,575

4. Shoshoni Landfill

d.

Topo of the entire landfill waste boundary and airspace volumetric calculation of
airspace consumption when compared against a surface developed by prior topographic
survey. $1,620

Topo and airspace volumetric calculation of airspace consumption when compared
against a surface developed by prior topographic survey:

=» Area of five acres or less, $ 1,040
=>» Area of greater than five acres but less than ten acres, $1,270
> Area of greater than ten acres but less than 20 acres, $1,390
=» Area of greater than 20 acres but less than 30 acres, and $1,390
=>» Area of greater than 30 acres but less than 40 acres. $ 1,500

Surveying and guidance staking of top of waste, base of an excavation, alignment, top of
final grade, or alternative requests (including a printable map with points shown and
cut/fill measurements shown with the points):

=» 50 points or less, $ 980

Page 2 of 3



= 51-75 points, $1,390
= 76-125 points, and $ 1,965
= 126-200 points. $2,520

Page3of 3



June 15, 2022

Board of Directors

Mark Moxley, Chairman

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
Lander, WY 82520

Dear Board of Directors:

This letter is to confirm our understanding of the terms and objectives of my
engagement and the nature and limitations of the services | will provide.

My engagement will be limited to assisting the Fremont County Solid Waste
Disposal District and its’ staff with the services as described on the attached task
order list.

I will not audit or review your financial statements, or any other accounting
documents, in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.
Accordingly, | ask that you not in any manner refer to my services as an audit or
review. Any financial statements generated will be for internal use only and | will
not issue a report on the internal use statements. My engagement cannot be
relied upon to disclose errors, fraud, or other illegal acts that may exist.
However, it may be necessary to ask you for clarification of some of the
information you provide, and I will inform you of any material errors, fraud or
other illegal acts that come to my attention, unless they are clearly
inconsequential.

You are responsible for adopting sound accounting policies, for maintaining an
adequate and efficient accounting system, for safeguarding assets, for
authorizing transactions, for retaining supporting documentation for those
transactions, and for devising a system of internal controls that will, among other
things, help assure the preparation of proper financial statements. Furthermore,
you are responsible for management decisions and functions, and for evaluating
the adequacy and results of those services.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls
to prevent and detect fraud, and for informing me about all known or suspected
fraud affecting the Organization involving (a) management (b) employees who
have significant roles in internal control, and (c) others where the fraud could
have a material effect on the financial statements. You are also responsible for
informing me of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud
affecting the Organization received in communications from employees, former
employees, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying
and ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws and regulations.



June 15, 2022
Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
Page 2

My fees and costs will be billed monthly at the rate of $100 per hour, and are
payable upon receipt. Invoices unpaid 30 days past the billing date may be
deemed delinquent, and are subject to an interest charge of 1.5% per month. |
reserve the right to suspend our services or to withdraw from this engagement in
the event that any of my invoices are deemed delinquent. In the event that any
collection action is required to collect unpaid balances due, you agree to
reimburse me for my costs of collection, including attorneys’ fees.

If either party elects to terminate my services, for any reason, my engagement
will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination.
You will be obligated to compensate me through the date of termination.

In connection with this engagement, | may communicate with you or others via
email transmission. As emails can be intercepted and read, disclosed, or
otherwise used or communicated by an unintended third party, or may not be
delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed and only to such
parties, | cannot guarantee or warrant that emails from me will be properly
delivered and read only by the addressee. Therefore, | specifically disclaim and
waive any liability or responsibility whatsoever for interception or unintentional
disclosure of emails transmitted by me in connection with the performance of this
engagement. In that regard, you agree that | shall have no liability for any loss or
damage to any person or entity resulting from the use of email transmissions,
including any consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or special damages, such
as loss of revenues or anticipated profits, or disclosure or communication of
confidential or proprietary information.

It is my policy to retain engagement documentation for a period of three years,
after which time | will commence the process of destroying the contents of our
engagement files. To the extent | accumulate any of your original records during
the engagement; those documents will be returned to you. The balance of my
engagement file is my property, and | will provide copies of such documents at
my discretion.

In the event | am required to respond to a subpoena, court order or other
legal process for the production of documents and/or testimony relative to
information we obtained and/or prepared during the course of this
engagement, you agree to compensate me at my standard hourly rates
then existing for the time we expend in connection with such response,
and to reimburse me for all of our out-of-pocket costs incurred in that
regard.



June 15, 2022
Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
Page 3

Any litigation arising out of this engagement, must be filed within the time period
allowed by Wyoming Statutes.

If you agree that the foregoing terms shall govern this engagement, please sign
the copy of this letter in the space provided and return the original signed letter to
me, keeping a fully-executed copy for your records.

Thank you for your attention to this matter, and please contact me with any
questions that you may have.

Sincerely,
S 8
SLB, Inc. |

Susan L. Brodie, CPA

ACCEPTED AND AGREED:

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District

By: Mark Moxley Date
Chairman of the Board



Accounting Services to be performed by:
Task List for Accounting Services SLB, Inc., Susan L Brodie, CPA
For Fiscal Year Ending 6/30/2023 PO Box 731, Lander, WY 82520
(307) 330-7181
susancpa@wyoming.com

Task Cost not to Estimated
Number Name Description exceed Completion
2023-1  Financial Review draft annual financial
Statements statements for auditors for fiscal year
ended 6/30/22, prepare Management
Discussion & Analysis and other $  4,000.00 Nov-22

2023-2  Audit Support  Prepare work papers and information
for audited financial statement. Provide
information to auditors as requested.

$ 5,000.00 Nov-22

2023-3  Budgets Finalize 2022-23 budget administration.
Assist with the preparation the budget
document for the next fiscal year, assist
superintendent with financial
projections and budgeting procedures
required.
S 4,000.00 Jul-22

2023-4  Monthly Review Review monthly financial reports and
make necessary adjustments. Prepare
Board reports and review sheet for files.
S 4,800.00 Jun-23

2023-5  Long-term Plan Assist the Board and superintendent
& Grants with the long term financial planning for
closure and post-closure costs,
equipment plan, etc. Assist with grant

reporting $ 1,600.00  Jun-23
2023-6  Board Meetings Attend board meetings, when

requested, and assist with financial

information provided to board

members. $ 1,750.00 Jun-23

2023-7  Miscellaneous  Other accounting services as requested
by FCSWDD, if needed S 8,850.00 Jun-23
Total Budget for Year Ending 6/30/2023
$ 30,000.00

5/15/2022



